
SUBJECT

Approval of an amendment to the Affiliation Agreement with the University of 
Southern California for the provision of medical care and training of future 
physicians and other healthcare professionals at LAC+USC Medical Center.

June 11, 2019

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012

Dear Supervisors:

APPROVAL TO AMEND THE AFFILIATION AGREEMENT WITH THE 
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

(SUPERVISORIAL DISRTICT 1)
(3 VOTES)

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

1. Make a finding pursuant to Los Angeles County Code Section 2.121.420
that contracting for physician and non-physician services, as described herein,
can be performed more feasibly and economically, respectively, by the private
sector.

2. Approve and instruct the Chair of the Board to execute Amendment No.
18 to the Affiliation Agreement No. 75853 (Agreement) with the University of
Southern California (University) to add purchased services and staffing at LAC
+USC Medical Center (LAC+USC MC), and increase the contract maximum
amount accordingly from $136,963,512 to $137,698,069 effective July 1, 2018
through June 30, 2019.
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PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

Background

Since 1885, the County of Los Angeles (County) and the University have successfully collaborated to 
meet the health care needs of the community through the provision of high quality medical care and 
training of future physicians and other healthcare professionals. The Board approved the initial 
affiliation agreement with University in 1981, and subsequently approved amendments and 
successor agreements, to adjust staffing, service, and funding levels to meet the needs of the 
patients and community at large, and ensure compliance with the accreditation standards set forth 
for the various medical training programs at LAC+USC MC.

Recommendations

Approval of the first recommendation is necessary to comply with Los Angeles County Section 
2.121.420, as amended on November 21, 2006, whereby contracting for services is allowed upon a 
Board determination that the use of independent contractors is more feasible than the use of County 
employees for physician services, and is more economical for non-physician services. The 
Department of Health Services (Department) has evaluated the Agreement’s physician services, and 
recommends the Board’s findings thereof.  The Department has also evaluated the addition of a 
psychologist (non-physician) due to attrition of a County employed psychologist, determined that 
such services are more cost-effective than the use of a County employee, and recommends the 
Board’s findings thereof.

Approval of the second recommendation will authorize the Chair of the Board to execute Amendment 
No. 18 (Exhibit I) to add purchased services and staffing commencing July 1, 2018, and increase the 
contract maximum amount, as described below:

Attrition. The Agreement provides that upon the attrition (i.e. departure) of a County-employed 
physician, the Director of Health Services, or her authorized designee, may either hire a replacement 
or direct the University, for the remainder of the contract year, to provide the services previously 
provided by such County employee through a University-employed physician.  The Agreement 
further requires the County to reimburse the University for replacing a County-employed physician in 
addition to the contract maximum amount, and amend the Agreement. 

During Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19, LAC+USC MC directed the University to replace the following 
vacated County physicians:

Department of Emergency Medicine. Internist (1.0 Full Time Equivalent or FTE) for the Urgent Care 
Center of the Department of Emergency Medicine at a prorated cost of $253,208 beginning 
September 19, 2018.

Department of Emergency Medicine. Emergency medicine specialist (1.0 FTE) for the Department of 
Emergency Medicine at a prorated cost of $172,241 beginning January 1, 2019.

Department of Anesthesiology. Anesthesiologist (1.0 FTE) as a Professor for the Department of 
Anesthesiology at a prorated cost of $165,668 beginning March 30, 2019.

Department of Radiology. Radiologist (1.0 FTE) as an Assistant Professor for the Department of 
Radiology at a prorated cost of $105,014 beginning April 1, 2019. 
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Department of Psychiatry. Clinical Psychologist (1.0 FTE) for the Department of Psychology at a 
prorated cost of $38,426 beginning March 28, 2019.  While a psychologist is a non-physician, LAC
+USC MC directed the University to replace the County-employed psychologist to ensure 
uninterrupted mental health care to County patients.

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

The recommended actions support Strategy II.2 “Support the Wellness of Our Communities” and III.3
 “Pursue Operational Effectiveness, Fiscal Responsibility, and Accountability” of the County’s 
Strategic Plan.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

The County’s annual maximum obligation under the Agreement will be increased by $734,557 from 
$136,963,512 to $137,698,069 for FY 2018-19.  Funding is included in DHS’ FY 2018-19 Final 
Budget, and will be requested in future fiscal years as needed.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

The term of the Agreement is for a five-year rolling term unless either party serves notice of non-
renewal to the other party, in which case the Agreement would expire in four years.

County Counsel has advised that the portion of the Agreement related to academic services are not 
subject to the provisions of Los Angeles County Code section by Los Angeles County Code section 
2.121.420. 

County Counsel has reviewed and approved Exhibit I as to form.

CONTRACTING PROCESS

Given the nature and scope of the services provided by the University under the Agreement, as well 
as the historic and longstanding relationship between the County and University with respect to 
establishing accredited medical and dental training programs, and specialty medical services at LAC
+USC MC, the Department determined that it was not feasible to competitively solicit for the services 
therein.  However, since the current Agreement was executed in 2006, the Department successfully 
negotiated a replacement agreement with the University, and will be requesting Board approval 
thereof prior to its effective date of July 1, 2019.

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

Approval of the recommendations will enable the continued provision of physician medical education 
and patient care services at LAC+USC MC.
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Respectfully submitted,

Christina R. Ghaly, M.D.

Director

Enclosures

Chief Executive Office
County Counsel
Executive Office, Board of Supervisors
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